TOWN OF FORESTPORT REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES FORESTPORT TOWN HALL 10275 Rte. 28 Forestport, N.Y. 13338

JUNE 16, 2021

MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS ABSENT

Supervisor Entwistle Councilwoman Kardash Councilman Scott Councilman Scouten Councilwoman Abrial

Tracy Terry, Town Clerk

CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting was called to order at 6:37 PM by Supervisor Entwistle.

ABSTRACTS:

GENERAL:

A motion was made by Councilman Scott and seconded by Councilwoman Kardash to pay Abstract #6, Vouchers #288- #340 in the amount of \$22,189.75.

Roll call vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes

Councilman Scott- yes

Councilman Scouten-yes

Councilwoman Abrial - yes

Supervisor Entwistle-yes

HIGHWAY:

A motion was made by Councilwoman Kardash and seconded by Councilman Scouten to pay Abstract #6, vouchers #170- #201 in the amount of \$28,903.11.

Roll call vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes

Councilman Scott- yes

Councilman Scouten- yes

Councilwoman Abrial - yes

Supervisor Entwistle-yes

TOWN CLERK MINUTES:

A motion was made by Councilwoman Abrial and seconded by Councilman Scott to accept the minutes from the:

Town Board Regular Meeting- May 19, 2021 Variance Hearing-Spine- May 19, 2021 Variance Hearing- Jackson- May 19, 2021

Roll Call Vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes Councilman Scott- yes Councilman Scouten- yes Councilwoman Abrial - yes Supervisor Entwistle-yes

REPORTS

TOWN CLERK REPORT
JUSTICE REPORT
PLANNING REPORT
DOG REPORT
CODES REPORT

A motion was made by Councilwoman Kardash and seconded by Councilman Scouten to approve the reports as a whole.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes Councilman Scott- yes Councilman Scouten- yes Councilwoman Abrial - yes

Supervisor Entwistle-yes

Supervisor Entwistie-ye

NOCCOG:

- The Tug Hill Commission meeting is at the Forestport Town Hall June 21, 2021, from 10am-11:30am.
- The Tug Hill Community Connectiveness Survey through the University of Albany is available online.
- The Oneida County Broadband Survey is available online.
- Webinars: The Underground Railroad Webinar series is June 24th and Regulating Short Term Rentals is June 23rd.
- Virtual meetings are going to be a permanent opportunity.
- Jean Waterbury is retiring.

OLD BUSINESS BOARD:

Solar Law

A motion was made by Councilman Scott and seconded by Councilwoman Abrial to accept the Solar Law as amended.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes Councilman Scott- yes Councilman Scouten- yes Councilwoman Abrial - yes Supervisor Entwistle-yes

2021 Solar Energy Local Law-Town of Forestport

1. Authority

This Solar Energy Local Law is adopted pursuant to sections 261-263 of the Town Law of the State of New York, which authorize the Town of Forestport to adopt provisions that advance and protect the health, safety and welfare of the community, and, in accordance with the Town Law of New York State, "to make provision for, so far as conditions may permit, the accommodation of solar energy systems and equipment and access to sunlight necessary therefor."

2. Statement of Purpose

- A. This Solar Energy Local Law is adopted to advance and protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the Town of Forestport by creating regulations for the installation and use of solar energy generating systems and equipment, with the following objectives:
 - 1) To take advantage of a safe, abundant, renewable and non-polluting energy resource;
 - To decrease the cost of electricity to the owners of residential and commercial properties, including single-family houses;
 - To increase employment and business development in the Town of Forestport, to the extent reasonably practical, by furthering the installation of Solar Energy Systems;
 - To mitigate the impacts of Solar Energy Systems on environmental resources such as important agricultural lands, forests, wildlife and other protected resources, and;
 - 5) To create synergy between solar expansion, the Town's Comprehensive Plan and the Town's Site Review Law

3. Definitions

BUILDING-INTEGRATED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM: A combination of Solar Panels and Solar Energy Equipment integrated into any building envelope system such as vertical facades, semitransparent skylight systems, roofing materials, or shading over windows, which produce electricity for onsite consumption.

FARMLAND OF STATEWIDE IMPORTANCE: Land, designated as "Farmland of Statewide Importance" in the U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)'s Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) Database on Web Soil Survey that is of state wide importance for the production of food, feed, fiber, forage, and oilseed crops as determined by the appropriate state agency or agencies. Farmland of Statewide Importance may include tracts of land that have been designated for agriculture by state law.

GLARE: The effect by reflections of light with intensity sufficient as determined in a commercially reasonable manner to cause annoyance, discomfort, or loss in visual performance and visibility in any material respects.

GROUND-MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM: A Solar Energy System that is anchored to the ground via a pole or other mounting system, detached from any other structure, which generates electricity for onsite and/or offsite consumption.

NATIVE PERENNIAL VEGETATION: Native wildflowers, forbs, and grasses that serve as habitat, forage, and migratory way stations for pollinators and shall not include any prohibited or regulated invasive species as determined by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation.

OWNER: The entity who owns all or a portion of a solar energy production facility.

OPERATOR: The entity responsible for the overall operation and management of a solar energy production facility.

POLLINATOR: Bees, birds, bats, and other insects or wildlife that pollinate flowering plants, and includes both wild and managed insects.

PRIME FARMLAND: Land, designated as "Prime Farmland" in the U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)'s Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) Database on Web Soil Survey, which has the best combination of physical and chemical characteristics for producing food, feed, forage, fiber, and oilseed crops and is also available for these land uses.

QUALIFIED SOLAR INSTALLER: A person who has skills and knowledge related to the construction and operation of solar electrical equipment and installations and has received safety training on the hazards involved. Persons who are on the list of eligible photovoltaic installers maintained by the New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA), or who are certified as a solar installer by the North American Board of Certified Energy Practitioners (NABCEP), shall be deemed to be qualified solar installers for the purposes of this definition. Persons who are not on NYSERDA's list of eligible installers or NABCEP's list of certified installers may be deemed to be qualified solar installers if the Town of Forestport determines such persons have had adequate training to determine the degree and extent of the hazard and the personal protective equipment and job planning necessary to perform the installation safely. Such training shall include the proper use of special precautionary techniques and personal protective equipment, as well as the skills and techniques necessary to distinguish exposed energized parts from other parts of electrical equipment and to determine the nominal voltage of exposed live parts.

ROOF-MOUNTED SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM: A Solar Energy System located on the roof of any legally permitted building or structure that produces electricity for onsite and/or offsite consumption.

SOLAR ACCESS: Space open to the sun and clear of overhangs or shade so as to permit the use of active and/or passive Solar Energy Systems on individual properties.

SOLAR ENERGY EQUIPMENT: Solar collectors, controls, inverters, energy storage devices, heat pumps, heat exchangers, and other materials, hardware or equipment necessary to the process by which solar radiation is collected, converted into another form of energy, stored, protected from unnecessary dissipation and distributed. Solar systems include solar thermal, photovoltaic, and passive solar.

SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM: The components and subsystems required to convert solar energy into electric energy suitable for use. The term includes, but is not limited to, Solar Panels and Solar Energy Equipment. The area of a Solar Energy System includes all the land inside the perimeter of the Solar Energy System, which extends to any interconnection equipment. A Solar Energy System is classified as a Tier 1, Tier 2, or Tier 3 Solar Energy System as follows.

- A. Tier 1 Solar Energy Systems include the following:
 - Roof-Mounted Solar Energy Systems
 - Building-Integrated Solar Energy Systems
- B. Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems include Ground-Mounted Solar Energy Systems with system capacity up to 25 kW AC and that generate no more than 110% of the electricity consumed on the site over the previous 12 months.
- C. Tier 3 Solar Energy Systems are systems including Solar Energy Production Facilities that are not included in the list for Tier 1 and Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems.

SOLAR ENERGY PRODUCTION FACILITY: An area of land or other area used for a solar collection system principally used to capture solar energy and convert it to electrical energy to transfer to the public electric grid in order to sell electricity to a public utility entity.

SOLAR PANEL: A photovoltaic device capable of collecting and converting solar energy into electricity. STORAGE BATTERY: A device that stores energy and makes it available in an electrical form.

4. Applicability

- A. The requirements of this Local Law shall apply to all Solar Energy Systems permitted, installed, or modified in the Town of Forestport after the effective date of this Local Law, excluding general maintenance and repair.
- B. Solar Energy Systems constructed or installed prior to the effective date of this Local Law shall not be required to meet the requirements of this Local Law.
- C. Modifications to an existing Solar Energy System that increase the Solar Energy System area by more than 5 % of the original area of the Solar Energy System (exclusive of moving any fencing) shall be subject to this Local Law.
- D. All Solar Energy Systems shall be designed, erected, and installed in accordance with all applicable codes, regulations, and industry standards as referenced in the NYS Uniform Fire Prevention and Building Code ("Building Code"), the NYS Energy Conservation Code ("Energy Code"), and the Town of Forestport Site Review Law.

5. General Requirements

A permit shall be required for installation of all Solar Energy Systems.

- B. The Town of Forestport Planning Board is encouraged to condition its approval of proposed developments on sites adjacent to Solar Energy Systems so as to protect their access to sufficient sunlight to remain economically feasible over time.
- C. Issuance of permits and approvals by the Planning Board shall include review pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act [ECL Article 8 and its implementing regulations at 6 NYCRR Part 617 ("SEQRA")].

6. Permitting Requirements for Tier 1 Solar Energy Systems

All Tier 1 Solar Energy Systems shall be permitted town-wide and shall be exempt from site plan review, subject to the following conditions for each type of Solar Energy System:

- A. Roof-Mounted Solar Energy Systems
 - Roof-Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall incorporate, when feasible, the following design requirements:
 - Solar Panels on pitched roofs shall be mounted with a maximum distance of 8 inches between the original roof surface the highest edge of the installed system.
 - Solar Panels on pitched roofs shall be installed parallel to the roof surface on which they are mounted or attached.
 - Solar Panels on pitched roofs shall not extend higher than the highest point of the roof surface on which they are mounted or attached.
 - d. Solar Panels on flat roofs shall not extend above the top of the surrounding parapet, or more than 24 inches above the flat surface of the roof, whichever is higher.
 - 2) Glare: All Solar Panels shall have anti-reflective coating(s).
 - Height: All Roof-Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall be subject to the maximum height regulations specified for principal and accessory buildings in the Town of Forestport Site Review Law.
- B. Building-Integrated Solar Energy Systems shall be shown on the plans submitted for the building permit application for the building containing the system.
- Roof access shall be maintained as required by applicable Building and Fire Code.

7. Permitting Requirements for Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems

All Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems shall be permitted town-wide as accessory structures and shall be required to go through site plan review under the Town of Forestport Site Review Law, subject to the following conditions:

A. Glare. All Solar Panels shall have anti-reflective coating(s).

- B. Setbacks. Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems shall be subject to the same setback regulations specified for primary structures in the Site Review Law. Solar Energy Systems shall not be located within 10 feet of the primary structure. All Ground- Mounted Solar Energy Systems shall only be installed in side or rear yards. Solar Energy Systems may not be located between the front lot line and principal structure.
- C. Height. Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems shall not exceed 15 feet in height, measured at maximum tilt.
- D. Screening and Visibility.
 - All Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems shall have views minimized from adjacent properties to the extent reasonably practicable.
 - Solar Energy Equipment shall be located in a manner to reasonably avoid and/or minimize blockage of views from surrounding properties and shading of property to the north, while still providing adequate solar access.
- E. Lot Size. The total surface area of all Tier 2 Solar Energy Systems on a lot shall not exceed the maximum coverage percentage including dwellings and structures as required in the Site Review Law.
- F. Electrical Wiring: All electrical wiring shall be installed underground to the extent feasible.

8. Additional Permitting requirements for Tier 1 and 2 Solar Energy Systems

- A. Where site plan approval is required in the Site Review Law for a development or activity, the site plan review shall include review of the adequacy, location, arrangement, size, design, general site compatibility and environmental impact assessment of proposed solar collectors. Where a site plan exists, an approved modified site plan shall be required if there are any proposed changes to or additions of solar collectors.
- B. All solar collector installations must be performed by a qualified solar installer, and, prior to operation, the electrical connections must be inspected by the Town of Forestport Code Enforcement Officer and by an appropriate electrical inspection person or agency, as determined by the Town of Forestport.
- C. Where solar energy equipment is to be tied- to and operated in parallel with facilities owned and operated by a public utility, the installation shall comply with all the applicable Rules and Regulations, Public Service Law and utility tariffs governing the interconnection. In addition, copies of any interconnection agreement shall be provided to the Town of Forestport Code Enforcement Officer prior to operation.
- D. When solar storage batteries are included as part of the solar collector system, they must be placed in a secure container or enclosure meeting the requirements of the New York State Building Code when in use, and, when no longer used, they shall be disposed of in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Notification of the installation and/or removal of solar

storage batteries shall be made to the Fire Department responsible for response to the location where the batteries are installed.

E. If a solar energy system ceases to perform its originally intended function for more than 12 consecutive months, the property owner shall remove the collector, mount and associated equipment and facilities no later than 90 days after the end of the twelve-month period. The Town of Forestport retains the option to require a bond or other form of security reasonably acceptable to the Town of Forestport Attorney be obtained in an amount sufficient to cover the future removal of the facility.

9. Permitting requirements for Tier 3 Solar Energy Systems

All Tier 3 Solar Energy Systems are permitted through site plan review, and subject to site plan application requirements as set forth in this Section.

- A. Applications for the installation of Tier 3 Solar Energy System shall be:
 - reviewed jointly by the Town of Forestport Code Enforcement Officer and Planning Board for completeness. Applicants shall be advised within a timely manner of the completeness of their application or any deficiencies that must be addressed prior to substantive review.
 - 2) subject to a public hearing within 62 days of the receipt of a complete application to hear all comments for and against the application. The Planning Board shall have a notice printed in a newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Forestport at least 5 days in advance of such hearing. Applicants shall have delivered the notice by first class mail to adjoining landowners or landowners within 500 feet of the property at least 10 days prior to such a hearing. Proof of mailing shall be provided to the Planning Board at the public hearing.
 - referred to the Oneida County Planning Department pursuant to General Municipal Law §239-m if required.
 - 4) upon closing of the public hearing, acted upon by the Planning Board shall take action within 62 days of the public hearing, which can include approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The 62-day period may be extended upon consent by both the Planning Board and applicant.
- B. Underground Requirements. All on-site utility lines shall be placed underground to the extent feasible and as permitted by the serving utility, with the exception of the main service connection at the utility company right-of-way and any new interconnection equipment, including without limitation any poles, with new easements and right-of-way.
- C. Vehicular Paths. Vehicular paths within the site shall be designed to minimize the extent of impervious materials and soil compaction.
- D. Signage.
 - No signage or graphic content shall be displayed on the Solar Energy System except the operator's name, equipment specification information, safety information, and 24-hour

emergency contact information. Said information shall be depicted within an area no more than 8 square feet.

- As required by National Electric Code (NEC), disconnect and other emergency shutoff information shall be clearly displayed on a light reflective surface. A clearly visible warning sign concerning voltage shall be placed at the base of all pad-mounted transformers and substations.
- E. Glare. All Solar Panels shall have anti-reflective coating(s).
- F. Lighting. Lighting of the Solar Energy Systems shall be limited to that minimally required for safety and operational purposes and shall be reasonably shielded and downcast from abutting properties.
- G. Tree-cutting. Where existing forested lands provide visual screening from public highways, or within 500 feet of the hamlet of Forestport, removal of existing trees larger than 6 inches in diameter should be minimized to the extent possible to preserve visual buffers.
- H. Project Review and Road Protection Costs.
 - The Town of Forestport may require an applicant seeking to develop any Tier 3 Solar Energy System to fund an escrow agreement or to sign a developer's agreement to cover the amount by which the Town of Forestport's estimated costs and expenses of review, including reasonable legal and engineering fees, exceed (or will exceed) the application fees paid by the applicant.
 - The Town of Forestport may require coverage or bonding to protect the integrity of Town roads during the construction of, through operation of, and decommissioning of a solar energy production facility.
- Decommissioning.
 - Solar Energy Systems that have been abandoned and/or not producing electricity for a period of 12 months shall be removed at the owner and/or operator's expense, which at the owner's option may come from any security made with the Town of Forestport as set forth below. The owner or operator shall notify the Town of Forestport Code Enforcement Officer and Planning Board by certified mail of the proposed date of discontinued operation and plans for removal.
 - 2) A decommissioning plan (see Appendix) signed by the owner and/or operator of the Solar Energy System and accepted by the Town of Forestport shall be submitted by the applicant, addressing the following:
 - a. The cost of removing the Solar Energy System.
 - b. The time required to decommission and remove the Solar Energy System and any ancillary structures.

- c. The time required to repair any damage caused to the property by the installation and removal of the Solar Energy System.
- Security.
- a. The deposit, executions, or filing with the Town of Forestport Clerk of cash, bond, or other form of security reasonably acceptable to the Town of Forestport Attorney and/or engineer, shall be in an amount sufficient to ensure the good faith performance of the terms and conditions of the permit issued pursuant hereto and to provide for the removal and restorations of the site subsequent to removal. The amount of the bond or security shall be 115 % of the cost of removal of the Tier 3 Solar Energy System and restoration of the property with an escalator of 5 % annually for the life of the Solar Energy System. The applicant's estimate shall be prepared by a qualified engineer, setting forth the costs associated with decommissioning the Solar Energy System at issue.
- b. In the event of default upon performance of such conditions, after proper notice and expiration of any cure periods, the cash deposit, bond, or security shall be forfeited to the Town of Forestport, which shall be entitled to maintain an action thereon. The cash deposit, bond, or security shall remain in full force and effect until restoration of the property as set forth in the decommissioning plan is completed.
- In the event of default or abandonment of the Solar Energy System, the system shall be decommissioned as set forth below.
- J. Site plan application. For any Tier 3 Solar Energy System, site plan approval shall be required. In addition, a completed SEQRA application shall be supplied. The site plan application shall include the following information and, if applicable, APA must be notified and approval given:
 - 1) Property lines and all physical features, including roads, for the project site.
 - Proposed changes to the landscape of the site, grading, vegetation clearing and planting, exterior lighting, and screening vegetation or structures.
 - 3) A one- or three-line electrical diagram detailing the Solar Energy System layout, solar collector installation, associated components, and electrical interconnection methods, with all National Electrical Code compliant disconnects and over current devices.
 - 4) A preliminary equipment specification sheet that documents all proposed solar panels, significant components, mounting systems, and inverters that are to be installed. A final equipment specification sheet shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a permit.
 - 5) Where solar energy equipment is to be tied- to and operated in parallel with facilities owned and operated by a public utility, the installation shall comply with all the applicable Rules and Regulations, Public Service Law and utility tariffs governing the interconnection. In addition, copies of any interconnection agreement shall be provided to the Town of Forestport Code Enforcement Officer and Planning Board prior to operation.

- 6) Name, address, and contact information of proposed or potential system installer and the owner and/or operator of the Solar Energy System. Such information of the final system installer shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a permit.
- 7) Name, address, phone number, and signature of the project applicant, as well as all the property owners, demonstrating their consent to the application and the specified use of the property for the Solar Energy System.
- 8) Operation and Maintenance Plan that shall describe standard operating procedure for the facility and scheduled maintenance plans for equipment and property upkeep, such as mowing and trimming.
- 9) Erosion and sediment control and storm water management plans prepared to New York State Department of Environmental Conservation standards, if applicable, and to such standards as may be established by the Planning Board.
- Prior to the issuance of the permit or final approval by the Planning Board, but not required as part of the application, engineering documents must be signed and sealed by a New York State (NYS) Licensed Professional Engineer or NYS Registered Architect.

K. Dimensional Standards.

- Lot size shall be a minimum of 3 acres.
- Minimum setbacks shall be as follows: (not applicable to property line dividing parcels owned by the same person or adjacent properties also participating in the project)
 - 100 feet from non-participating residential property lines
 - 50 feet from the centerline of public roads and non-participating non-residential property lines
 - 250 feet from non-participating occupied residences
- 3) Maximum height of panels shall be 20 feet.
- 4) Lot coverage
- The following components of a Tier 3 Solar Energy System shall be considered included in the calculations for lot coverage requirements:
 - Foundation systems, typically consisting of driven piles or monopoles or helical screws with or without small concrete collars.
 - ii. All mechanical equipment of the Solar Energy System, including any pad mounted structure for batteries, switchboard, transformers, or storage cells.
 - iii. Paved access roads servicing the Solar Energy System.
- b. Lot coverage of the Solar Energy System, as defined above, shall not exceed 50%.

- 5) Fencing Requirements. All equipment, including any structure for storage batteries, shall be enclosed by a 7-foot-high fence, with a self-locking gate to prevent unauthorized access.
- L. Screening and Visibility.
 - 1) Solar Energy Systems larger than 10 acres shall be required to:
 - a. Conduct a visual assessment of the visual impacts of the Solar Energy System on public roadways and adjacent properties. At a minimum, a line-of-sight profile analysis shall be provided. Depending upon the scope and potential significance of the visual impacts, additional impact analyses, including for example a digital viewshed report, may be required to be submitted by the applicant.
 - Submit a screening and landscaping plan to show adequate measures to screen to minimize views of the Facility from public roadways and adjacent non-participating properties improved with a residence or commercial structure.
 - c. The screening and landscaping plan shall specify the locations, elevations, height, plant species, and/or materials that will comprise the structures, landscaping, and/or grading used to screen and/or mitigate any adverse aesthetic effects of the system, following the recommendations, rules, and standards established by the Town of Forestport. The landscaped screening surrounding the panels shall be comprised of a minimum of 1 evergreen tree, at least 6 feet high at time of planting, plus 2 supplemental shrubs or other equivalent vegetation, not limited to evergreen, every 10 feet.

M. Agricultural Resources.

- Any Tier 3 Solar Energy Systems shall minimize the use of actively cultivated Prime Farmland to the extent possible.
- Where applicable, Tier 3 Solar Energy Systems are encouraged to plant native perennial vegetation designed to attract pollinators in maintained buffer areas or where vegetative screening is proposed.
- To the maximum extent practicable, Tier 3 Solar Energy Systems located on Prime Farmland shall be constructed in accordance with the construction requirements of the New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets.
- 4) Tier 3 Solar Energy System owners shall develop, implement, and maintain native vegetation to the extent practicable pursuant to a vegetation management plan by providing native perennial vegetation and foraging habitat beneficial to game birds, songbirds, and pollinators. To the extent practicable, when establishing perennial vegetation and beneficial foraging habitat, the owners shall use native plant species and seed mixes.

N. Ownership Changes. If the owner of the Solar Energy System changes or the owner of the property changes, the permit shall remain in effect, provided that the successor owner or operator assumes in writing all of the obligations of the permit, site plan approval, and decommissioning plan. A current and new owner of the Solar Energy System shall notify the code enforcement officer of such change in ownership within 90 days of the ownership change. The seller is to reimburse the escrow amount to the buyer, so the town escrow can stay in place.

O. Safety.

- Solar Energy Systems and Solar Energy Equipment shall be certified under the applicable electrical and/or building codes as required. Installation shall be completed by Qualified Solar Installers.
- 2) Solar Energy Systems shall be maintained in good working order and in accordance with industry standards. Site access shall be maintained, including snow removal at a level acceptable to the local fire department and, if the Tier 3 Solar Energy System is located in an ambulance district, the local ambulance corps.
- 3) If Storage Batteries are included as part of the Solar Energy System, they shall meet the requirements of any applicable fire prevention and building code when in use and, when no longer used, shall be disposed of in accordance with the laws and regulations of the Town of Forestport and any applicable federal, state, or county laws or regulations.
- 4) The Tier 3 Solar Energy System owner/operator shall provide a copy of the project site plans and electrical schematic to the responsible local Fire Chief. Upon request, the owner/operator shall cooperate with local emergency services in developing an emergency response plan. The owner/operator shall offer on-site safety training to all local fire departments within 3 months of operation, and a reoccurring refresher training as requested by the local fire departments. The owner/operator shall specify a responsible person with access phone number for public inquiries throughout the life of the installation. Emergency contact number shall be displayed at the entrance to the facilities.

P. Permit Time Frame and Abandonment.

- The permit and site plan approval for a Solar Energy System shall be valid for a period of 18 months, provided that a permit is issued for construction or construction is commenced. In the event construction is not completed in accordance with the final site plan, as may have been amended and approved, as required by the Planning Board, within 18 months after approval, the applicant or the Town of Forestport may extend the time to complete construction for 120 days. If the owner and/or operator fails to perform substantial construction after 20 months, the approvals shall expire unless the owner/operator can demonstrate that additional time is needed for good cause, in the event that some circumstance outside the owner/operator's control prevents the completion of decommissioning activities within 6 months.
- 2) Upon cessation of electricity generation of a Solar Energy System on a continuous basis for 12 months, the Town of Forestport may notify and instruct the owner and/or operator of the Solar Energy System to implement the decommissioning plan. The decommissioning plan must be completed within 6 months of notification.

3) If the owner and/or operator fails to comply with decommissioning upon any abandonment, the Town may, at its discretion, utilize the bond and/or security for the removal of the Solar Energy System and restoration of the site in accordance with the decommissioning plan.

10. Effect on Other Laws

To the extent that any law, ordinance, rule or regulation, or parts thereof, are in conflict with the provisions of this law, including all provisions of the laws concerning subdivisions or site plan applications, the more stringent shall control.

11. Enforcement and Penalties

Any violation of this Solar Energy Law shall be subject to the same enforcement requirements, including the civil and criminal penalties, provided for in the Town of Forestport Site Review Law.

12. Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, provision, or phrase of the aforementioned sections, as declared by the valid judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, provision, or phrase, which shall remain in full force and effect.

Appen	dix: Example Decommissioning Plan
Date:	[Date]
Decom Submi	nmissioning Plan for [Solar Project Name], located at: [Solar Project Address] Prepared and tted by [Solar Developer Name], the owner of [Solar Farm Name]
As requ Project	uired by Town, [Solar Developer Name] presents this decommissioning plan for [Solar t Name] (the "Facility").
Decom	missioning will occur as a result of any of the following conditions:
1.	The land lease, if any, ends
2.	The system does not produce power for 6 months and no construction has been started to repair or upgrade.
3.	The system is damaged and will not be repaired or replaced
proper	rner of the Facility, as provided for in its lease with the landowner, shall restore the ty to its condition as it existed before the Facility was installed, pursuant to which may the following:
1.	Removal of all operator-owned equipment, concrete, conduits, structures, fencing, and foundations.
2.	Removal of any solid and hazardous waste caused by the Facility in accordance with local, state and federal waste disposal regulations.
3.	Removal of all graveled areas and access roads unless the landowner requests in writing for it to remain.
1.	Stabilization or re-vegetation of the site as necessary to minimize erosion.
All said acility	removal and decommissioning shall occur within 6 months of notification that the is ceasing to produce power for sale.

acility Owner Signature: Date:	
Acceptance:	
own of Forestport Representative Name and Position:	

their continuing responsibility for these actions.

Facility Owner Name and Title:_

The owner of the Facility, currently [Solar Developer Name], is responsible for this decommissioning. Current owner shall notify any subsequent owners of this agreement and

- **Bridge Construction:** Both bridges are on schedule to be drivable by June 25th.
- Camp Nazareth: Camp will not be hosted this year due to State mandates.
- **Groomer:** Ron Davies, of Trackside Blazers, Supervisor Entwistle and Jen Hartsig had a meeting two weeks ago. They were working towards replacing the Groomer, but due to constraints, it will not work out. Trackside Blazers is requesting a Trail Paver Drag and a package of 3 sled counters. Supervisor Entwistle stated the sled counters will be a great opportunity for Forestport because they can track how many snowmobilers travel through the Town in a given year.
- **SRL Changes:** This will be tabled as the Planning Board will be looking at this again next month.

NEW BUSINESS BOARD:

• Wholesome Living, Inc.; Forestport Nature Club: Ash Fletcher presented fliers to the Town Board tonight and mentioned her group is also doing the Community Garden. She stated she has been working on the Nature Club for eight years. This is something she has tried before, and she is bringing it back. The idea is walks, mindfulness time, no devices and nature. The group already cleaned a lot of trees and trails out. The group had a volunteer from Facebook cut trees up on the nature trail. Supervisor Entwistle stated the Town is fortunate that when they bought the school, it came with an outdoor classroom and extensive trail. They have been looking to expand the use. Councilwoman Kardash asked when they were planning on starting and for how many weeks. Ash Fletcher stated at the end of the month on Fridays from 3pm-5pm, if approved and since there is availability of the trail, they could use it year -round. They need access to the bathrooms and the gym in inclement weather. Supervisor Entwistle asked her if she had keys and she could come and go as she needs to. There is another group using the gym a few times a week and Supervisor Entwistle will put her in touch with them in case of cross scheduling, they can work it out. Supervisor Entwistle did deliver the lumber for the garden, so if Ash needs anything else, Supervisor Entwistle said to let him know.

A motion was made by Councilman Scott and seconded by Councilwoman Abrial to approve the project.

Roll Call Vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes Councilman Scott- yes Councilman Scouten- yes Councilwoman Abrial - yes Supervisor Entwistle-yes

- Planning Grant: Jen Hartsig is urging the Town Board to apply for the Planning Grant, up to \$100,000 to revamp the Comprehensive Master Plan. The last amendment was in 2010-2011 and the plan was created in 2003. If they are willing to pay for it, Supervisor Entwistle is willing to get a committee together. It is a large commitment. The Board will be looking for volunteers from all facets of the Town and all three Hamlets, Snowbird, Deer Spring Park, seasonal residents, year- round, young people, and retired people. This would take place next year. If interested, contact Supervisor Entwistle.
- Otter Lake Speed Study: Jeanne VanValkenburg asked if there was any word on the Speed Study. Supervisor Entwistle will reach out to Mike and Scott on Monday.

- Quarry: Supervisor Entwistle went over the meeting rules prior to discussion.
 - ➤ Sheila Cuccaro stated the quarry would be detrimental to the animals, and the people who live here. She stated the Army Core of Engineers should be involved in the study.
 - ➤ Jeannie VanValkenburg asked if an Environmental Impact Study has been done. Supervisor Entwistle answered no. He received a transmission from the DEC; stating the DEC and the APA are considering this a Type II project, and there will not be an Environmental Impact Study as this type of project does not have a significant impact on the environment. The DEC considers the SEQR process closed for their purposes. The APA may continue the SEQR process for their purposes of reviewing the application.
 - ➤ Joe Turczyn is an adjacent property owner to Mr. Sunderlin. He wanted to make the Town Board aware of his concerns of the fuel, residue, air and pollution coming into the wetlands and into the White Lake Outlet that will migrate through to the other waters. He stated Quarry Road is a seasonal road and asked if the Town was going to be responsible for maintaining and plowing Quarry Road for Mr. Sunderlin. Supervisor Entwistle stated the application states it is from May-October. He cannot speak for the Planning Board or the Highway Superintendent, but he does not foresee the Town maintaining the road year-round. He would expect the Planning Board to have some sort of contract if this project is approved. The Highway Department would be required to maintain the road because it is a Town Road and Mr. Sunderlin would be fiscally responsible.
 - ➤ Pete Tamburo stated the project does not fit with the character of the community. He read a paragraph aloud from the Strategic Plan. He explained this project isn't just about the mining, but clear cutting that has taken place along the Lake. He stated Mr. Sunderlin wants it open from 6am-7pm, five and a half days a week for twenty -five years. Supervisor Entwistle stated he received a list of incomplete items from the DEC. One item that needs to be revised is the hours of operation.
 - A gentleman from the gallery asked what recourse the Town would have if things do not go the way they are supposed to go.
 - ➤ Don Frank asked the Gallery to petition the Town Board. He discussed the 1987 Tug Hill Study. Discussion took place.
 - Renee, from the Gallery stated she lived by a quarry, and said it does a lot of damage to your health and a lot of dust gets in your house, as well as noise and traffic.
 - ➤ Courtney Weller, President of the Adirondack White Lake Association stated they have hired an independent mining expert. The goal is to get an independent review to see the potential impact; if any. He stated Municipal Law states if mining is allowed in the Town, then the Boards have to allow mining. The APA has their own Environmental Study. He stated the Boards

- want to do the right thing. If your position is not mining, you need to speak to the Town Board. If you have concerns, you need to go to the APA and the DEC.
- ➤ Dan Shaughnessy asked the Board if they are prepared to be the voice of the people and think of the role of preparing the Environmental Impact Statement.
- > Supervisor Entwistle stated he has worked with this Board for six years and they have the best interest of the Town of Forestport. The Board is duty bound to ensure the permitting process for any project is preserved and each application is treated equally. Supervisor Entwistle stated Mr. Sunderlin has recently submitted an application to the Town and requested a Preliminary Consultation with the Planning Board at their July Meeting, so he will be in house with whatever consultants he may have. He is hosting an Open House tomorrow night at 5:30 by invite only for interested parties. The Town Board, Planning Board, APA, DEC, and adjoining landowners were invited. Those wishing to attend can reach out to Supervisor Entwistle and he will get you in contact with Mr. Sunderlin. Supervisor Entwistle spoke to a representative from the APA regarding their status and they are considering it incomplete at this time. They will issue a formal comment period when it is complete. He has reached out to the DEC and has received no response. If the DEC and APA approve this project, it will come to the Town as a cursory inspection as a new business. Supervisor Entwistle said if you want to find out if something is factual, call him or come to a Town Board meeting. Should this Board have to vote on the Quarry, Supervisor Entwistle is recusing himself from voting because he has a personal relationship with Mr. Sunderlin, and he is on the Board of Directors that is involved with investigating the project. His role is to provide factual information regardless of the individual's cause.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

A motion was made by Councilman Scouten and seconded by Councilwoman Abrial to enter executive session regarding a legal matter.

Roll call vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes Councilman Scott- yes Councilman Scouten- yes Councilwoman Abrial - yes Supervisor Entwistle-yes

The Board returned from Executive session at 7:54 with no action taken.

NEW BUSINESS PUBLIC:

➤ Mona Lincoln, representing Otter Lake Association requested a repair of a pillar on Lakeview Road, as it was possibly hit by the Highway truck. The pillars are grandfathered in but are in the Highway right of way. Supervisor Entwistle stated they would have a caveat that if it happens again, the possibility of moving them. Supervisor Entwistle asked Mona to email him the receipt. The estimates were \$2,000 for the Northern one and \$1,200 for the Southern one.

A motion was made by Councilwoman Abrial and seconded by Councilman Scouten to reimburse Otter Lake Association \$1,000 for the pillar.

Roll call vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -no

Councilman Scott- yes

Councilman Scouten-yes

Councilwoman Abrial - yes

Supervisor Entwistle-yes

ADJOURNMENT:

A motion was made by Councilwoman Kardash and seconded by Councilwoman Abrial to adjourn the meeting.

Roll call vote:

Councilwoman Kardash -yes

Councilman Scott- yes

Councilman Scouten- ves

Councilwoman Abrial - yes

Supervisor Entwistle-yes

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:58 pm by Supervisor Entwistle.

Respectfully submitted,

Tracy M. Terry Forestport Town Clerk